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Lynne Tomson '
B 00000 000
From: Barbara Glover
Sent: November-09-17 5:22 PM
To: Boutziouvis, Sam
Cc: Lynne Tomson; David Naus
Subject: consultations
Sam

The consultations are being managed by Government of Canada officials —and at meetings we have had participation
from an array of ISED, GAC, PSPC and DOJ officials. It is a misunderstanding that the consultations are jointly {and
solely) led by DOJ and PSPC. Equally it is rarely the case that all four departments are at every consultation. Having said
that GAC, ISED and PSPC had eight individuals at the meeting with SNC including executives from all three
organizations.

The portal for submissions will close on November 17, however we will accept submissions by email or mail (addresses
are on the PSPC website for the consultations) and continue to have meetings until the first week of December.

In terms of timing, we expect to have the “What we heard” document out in early January. Additionally we would need
to go to Cabinet for any changes to the Integrity Regime and for consideration of the introduction of a Deferred
Prosecution Agreement. It is our view —and we are saying this in consultation meetings — that legislation would be
required for the introduction of a Deferred Prosecution Agreement, which would follow Cabinet review.

I hope this is helpful.

From: Boutziouvis, Sam [mailto:Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com]

Sent: November-09-17 1:09 PM

To: Barbara Glover <Barbara.Glover@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>

Cc: Lynne Tomson <Lynne.Tomson@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>; David Naus <David.Naus@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>
Subject: FW: Coffee?

Importance: High

Thanks, Barbara. Yes, | am very much aware of today’s meeting regarding AA follow-up. Can | leave you with an
observation and a question?

e Officials from the Department of Justice were not at the meeting on Friday morning with SNC-Lavalin. This is
somewhat concerning. Understanding that notes were taken, the consultation process is led by PSP and
Justice. Please clarify if this has changed. Justice Canada’s reason to not participate is unknown, but one can
speculate. However, one shouldn’t have to. Asyou indicate below, this is a formal process. This is precisely the
point —it’s a formal process irrespective of what is going on elsewhere between SNC-Lavalin and the
Government of Canada.

e Following Friday’s meeting, would it be possible to clarify — to the extent possible -- the calendar for the DPA/IR
process after November 17%.

¢ You had indicated in the meeting that the consultation team would have meetings into December. This
is of course welcome.

e Are you accepting submissions past November 1712 This seems to be a common occurrence with
other, if not most other, consultation processes.
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e Your message below provides a partial clarification that the consultation report will be made public in
January. This is appreciated.
¢ s there any clarity that you provide thereafter regarding process and timing? Our interpretation of the
discussion last Friday morning was of a process that stretched farther into 2018.
All the best, '
Sam

From: Barbara Glover [mailto:Barbara.Glover@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.cal
Sent: November 9, 2017 8:33 AM

To: Boutziouvis, Sam

Cc: Lynne Tomson; David Naus

Subject: Re: Coffee?

Good morning Sam.

As you may know, SNC compliance staff are meeting with David regarding AA follow up today. If there are
additional issues on that David, Lynne and | would be pleased to meet. I'm not sure we could do Friday
though we could set something up for next week.

Regarding the consultations on DPAs and IR, meetings are being carried out in a formal way ie with a note
taker and the relevant government departments. The results of these meetings along with submissions will
provide the basis for the consultation report we will make public in January. Given my role  am notin a
position to provide informal or off the record advice, which I'm sure you understand.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Rogers network.

From: Boutziouvis, Sam

Sent: Wednesday, November 8, 2017 11:05 AM
To: Barbara Glover

Subject: Coffee?

Hi, Barbara. Following up on last week, and other stuff, | could use your advice/input on a couple of matters. | know
you are busy, but would you have time for a coffee on Friday?

Thanks

Sam
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anne Tomson

From: Boutziouvis, Sam <Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com>

Sent: October-26-17 8:.08 AM

To: Lynne Tomson

Cc Barbara Glover; Corri Barr; David Naus

Subject: RE: Nov 3rd date for meeting re: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR
consultations | Expanding Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13
2017

Thanks, Lynne.

Participating from SNC will be Hartland Paterson, General Counsel; Erik Ryan, Exec VP, Strategy Marketing and External
Relations, et moi. Will let you know asap if this has changed.

Much appreciated.

Sam

PS No one from Justice Canada? Shy, are they©?

From: Lynne Tomson [mailto:Lynne.Tomson@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.cal

Sent: October 26, 2017 7:58 AM

To: Boutziouvis, Sam

Cc: Barbara Glover; Corri Barr; David Naus

Subject: RE: Nov 3rd date for meeting re: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations |
Expanding Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Hi Sam,
Yes | confirm that NoVember 31 9:30 at Place du Portage, Phase I, Tower A 14™ Floor, 14A2-101 has been scheduled.
In addition, we have reached out to ISED and GAC officials. Please advise. who from SNC will be attending so we can

advise the commissionaires.

Lynne

From: Boutziouvis, Sam [mailto:Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com]
Sent: October-25-17 2:33 PM

To: Lynne Tomson <Lynne.Tomson@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>

Cc: Barbara Glover <Barbara.Glover@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>; Corri Barr <Corri.Barr@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>; David Naus
<David.Naus@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca>

Subject: Nov 3rd date for meeting re: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding
Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Hi, Lynne. Just wondering if November 3™ works for you? We can push it to the following week as well.
Thanks for advising.
Sam

From: Lynne Tomson [mailto:Lynne.Tomson@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.cal
Sent: October 17, 2017 9:34 PM

To: Boutziouvis, Sam

Cc: Barbara Glover; Corri Barr; David Naus
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Subject: RE: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding Canada's toolkit to
address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017 ‘

Hi Sam,
Unfortunately, we will not be able to accommodate a meeting next week but was wondering if there are dates the week

of October 30" that would work for SNC.

Lynne

From: Barbara Glover

Sent: October-13-17 4:15 PM
To: Boutziouvis, Sam <Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com>; Lynne Tomson <Lynne.Tomson@1ipsgc-pwgsc.gc.cas; Corri
Barr <Corri.Barr@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca>; David Naus <David.Naus@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca>

Subject: Re: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding Canada's toolkit to
address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Hi Sam.

Thank you for these.

On Monday we will start to work out a time and day that works for us. Starting with looking at Octoker 24
To note, | will take the mtg for pspc. Will also engage DOJ to seek their participation.

Bonne fin de semaine.

Barb

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Rogers network.

From: Boutziouvis, Sam

Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 12:02 PM

To: Les Linklater; Barbara Glover; Lynne Tomson

Subject: FW: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding Canada's toolkit to
address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Dear Les, Barbara and Lynne.

- Attached is SNC-Lavalin’s submission to the Government of Canada’s consultations on a DPA for Canada and
enhancements to PSP Canada’s IR.

On behalf of SNC-Lavalin, | would like to request a meeting to discuss the contents of our submission and to go over any
questions or clarifications. At the meeting will likely be Erik Ryan, EVP of Strategy, Marketing and External Relations;
Hartland Paterson, General Counsel, myself and schedule permitting, Neil Bruce, President and Chief Executive Officer.

Understand that you are under severe time constraints. However, may | suggest on a preliminary basis October 24™ as

a possible date for such a meeting? Otherwise, please advise if other dates are better suited for such an in person
exchange. Hope you can accommodate this request.
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Look forward to hearing from you and please do not hesitate to ask any questions in the interim.
Best regards,

Sam

From: Boutziouvis, Sam

Sent: October 13, 2017 11:48 AM

To: 'tpsgc.dgsiggjapdconsulter-dobifamgdpaconsult.pwgsc@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca’; 'tpsge.dgsiggjriconsulter-
dobifamgirconsult.pwgsc@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca'

Subject: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding Canada's toolkit to address
corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Dear Sir/Madam,

Attached please find SNC-Lavalin’s submission to the Government of Canada’s consultations on a Deferred Prosecution
Agreement for Canada and enhancements to Public Services and Procurement Canada’s Integrity Regime. The
documents are provided as a single PDF, as well as separate documents including transmittal letter to Minister
Qualtrough.

Thanks for the opportunity. If you have any qbuestions, please do not hesitate to ask at your convenience.
Regards,

Sam Boutziouvis

Vice President

Government Relations and

Multilateral Development Institutions
SNC-Lavalin
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From: Boutziouvis, Sam <Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com>
Sent: October-17-17 9:49 PM
To: Lynne Tomson
Cc: Barbara Glover; Corri Barr; David Naus
Subject: Re: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding

Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017
Thanks, Lynne. My impression is that early on the week of October 30 will work best, but | will confirm tomorrow or
Thursday and will revert. Have a restful evening. Warm regards, Sam
Sent from my iPad

On Oct 17, 2017, at 9:33 PM, Lynne Tomson <Lynne. Tomson@1tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca> wrote:

Hi Sam,

Unfortunately, we will not be able to accommodate a meeting next week but was wondering if there
are dates the week of October 30" that would work for SNC.

Lynne

From: Barbara Glover

Sent: October-13-17 4:15 PM

To: Boutziouvis, Sam <Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com>; Lynne Tomson <Lynne.Tomson@tpsgc-
pwgsc.gc.ca>; Corri Barr <Corri.Barr@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca>; David Naus <David.Naus@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca>
Subject: Re: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding Canada's
toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Hi Sam.
Thank you for these.

On Monday we will start to work out a time and day that works for us. Starting with looking at
October 24 :

To note, | will take the mtg for pspc. Will also engage DOJ to seek their participation.
Bonne fin de semaine.
Barb

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the Rogers network.

From: Bouiziouvis, Sam
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

Attached is SNC-Lavalin’s submission to the Government of Canada’s consultations on a DPA for Canada
and enhancements to PSP Canada’s IR.

On behalf of SNC-Lavalin, | would like to request a meeting to discuss the contents of our submission
and to go over any questions or clarifications. At the meeting will likely be Erik Ryan, EVP of Strategy,

Marketing and External Relations; Hartland Paterson, General Counsel, myself and schedule permitting,
Neil Bruce, President and Chief Executive Officer.

Understand that you are under severe time constraints. However, may | suggest on a preliminary basis
October 24" as a possible date for such a meeting? Otherwise, please advise if other dates are better
suited for such an in person exchange. Hope you can accommodate this request.

Look forward to hearing from you and please do not hesitate to ask any questions in the interim.

Best regards,

Sam

From: Boutziouvis, Sam

Sent: October 13, 2017 11:48 AM

To: 'tpsgc.dgsigejapdconsulter-dobifamgdpaconsult.pwgsc@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca';
'tpsgc.dgsiggiriconsulter-dobifamgirconsult.pwgsc@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca'

Subject: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding Canada's
toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017 '

Dear Sir/Madam,

Attached please find SNC-Lavalin’s submission to the Government of Canada’s consultations on a
Deferred Prosecution Agreement for Canada and enhancements to Public Services and Procurement
Canada’s Integrity Regime. The documents are provided as a single PDF, as well as separate documents
including transmittal letter to Minister Qualtrough.

Thanks for the opportunity. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to ask at your
convenience.

Regards,

Sam Boutziouvis

Vice President

Government Relations and
Multilateral Development Institutions
SNC-Lavalin
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David Naus

From: Boutziouvis, Sam <Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com>

Sent: July-12-17 1:46 PM

Subject: NEW TRANSPARENCY INTERNATIONAL CANADA REPORT'ANOTHER ARROW IN THE
QUIVER?: CONSIDERATION OF A DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT SCHEME IN
CANADA"

NEW TRANSPARENCY INTERNATIONAL CANADA REPORT“ANOTHER ARROW
IN THE QUIVER?: CONSIDERATION OF A DEFERRED PROSECUTION
AGREEMENT SCHEME IN CANADA”

Reply-To: Transparency International Canada <ti-can(@transparencycanada.ca>

View this email in vour browser

July 11, 2017
Media Advisory

NEW TRANSPARENCY INTERNATIONAL CANADA REPORT
“ANOTHER ARROW IN THE QUIVER?: CONSIDERATION OF A
DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT SCHEME IN CANADA”

TORONTO - White collar crime enforcement is chronically low in Canada and
law enforcement officials need additional tools to support their efforts. Based on
this, a new report from Transparency International Canada (T1 Canada)
recommends the Government of Canada consider adopting a Deferred

Prosecution Agreements (DPASs).

The report is the result of an ambitious study undertaken by Tl Canada’s

000008



Divulgué en vertu de la LAI
Released under the ATIA

enforcement, prosecutors and the judiciary to efficiently combat corporate crime

Tl Canada hopes that this report will contribute to enriching the dialogue about
the adoption of DPAs in Canada and that our views will be carefully considered
by lawmakers. The possible adoption of DPAs in Canada represents a unique
opportunity to have an important public discussion about the fight against
corruption in Canada. Tl Canada welcomes that policy debate, intends to
actively participate in it, and invites all like-minded Canadians to support our

activities.

Read the report here: Another Arrow in the Quiver?: Consideration of a

Deferred Prosecution Agreement Scheme in Canada

x|| Share Tweet EI Forward

This email was sent to sam.boutziouvis@snclavalin.com

why did | get this? unsubscribe from this list update subscription preferences

Transparency International Canada - 4700 Keele Street - Toronto, On M3J 1P3 - Canada
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DGS IGGJ APD Consulter / DOB IFAMG DPA Consult (TPSGC/PWGSC)

From: DGS IGGJ APD Consulter / DOB IFAMG DPA Consult (TPSGC/PWGSC)
Sent: October-02-17 9:26 AM

To: Boutziouvis, Sam

Subject: - RE: Consultation submissions and meeting consultation questions

Good morning,
Thank you for your questions.

Interested Canadians and stakeholders are invited to participate in the online consultation. Following the close of the
consultation, the Government of Canada will report through the Consulting With Canadians website
(www.consultingcanadians.gc.ca) on what it heard. Individual submissions will not be posted or included in the report.
Any personal information collected by the Government in the course of this consultation is protected under the Privacy
Act. All records under the contro! of the Government, including submissions made in the course of this consultation, are
subject to the Access to Information Act, which provides for a right of access subject to exem ptions including one that
protects personal information from disclosure.

Meetings with Government officials and their format will be considered upon request. Please note that any record
under the control of the Government in relation to a meeting is subject to the Access to Information Act. Any personal
information contained in such a record is protected under the Privacy Act.

From: Boutziouvis, Sam [mailto:Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com]

Sent: September-25-17 4:13 PM ,

To: DGS IGGJ APD Consulter / DOB IFAMG DPA Consult (TPSGC/PWGSC) <TPSGC.DGSIGGJAPDConsulter-
DOBIFAMGDPAConsult. PWGSC@tpsgc-pwgsc.ge.ca>

Subject: Consultation submissions and meeting consultation questions

Helio,
1. The privacy statement on the consultation website portal suggests that consultation submissions will not be
released to the public. “They will be anonymized.” Please confirm.
2. Will there be follow up one on one/meeting consultations? If so, when? What format? Public/not public?
Thanks
Sam
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DGS IGGJ RI Consulter / DOB IFAMG IR Con‘sult (TPSGC/PWGSC)

From: Boutziouvis, Sam <Sam.Boutziouvis@snclavalin.com>

Sent: October-13-17 11:48 AM

To: DGS IGGJ APD Consulter / DOB IFAMG DPA Consult (TPSGC/PWGSC); DGS IGGJ RI
Consulter / DOB IFAMG IR Consult (TPSGC/PWGSC)

Subject: SNC-Lavalin Submission to Govt of Canada DPA and IR consultations | Expanding
Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing | Oct 13 2017

Attachments: DPA IR Consultation submission SNCL with signed letter October 13 2017 pdf; Letter to

Min Qualtrough signed by NB October 13 2017.pdf; DPA Consultation submission
October 13 2017 clean.pdf; integrity regime consultation questions oct 13.pdf

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

Thanks for the opportunity. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to ask at your convenience.
Regards,

Sam Boutziouvis

Vice President

Government Relations and

Multilateral Development Institutions
SNC-Lavalin
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SMNC-Lavalin Inc.
455 René-l évesque Blvd. West
Montreal, Quebec, Canada, H2Z 1723

SNC-LAVALIN % 514.393.1000 & 514.866.0795

October 13, 2017

The Honourable Carla Qualtrough, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Public Services and Procurement Canada
11 Laurier Street, Building: Portage 1l

Tower A, Room 18A1 and

PSP Canada, Room 10A1

Gatineau, Quebec

Canada K1A 955

Deferred Prosecution Agreement and Integrity Regime consultation:
Expanding Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing

Dear Minister,

On behalf of SNC-Lavalin, | welcome your Government's decision to engage in consultations on expanding
Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdoing through a Deferred Prosacution Agreement (DPA) and further
enhancements to the Department of Public Services and Procurement Canada’s Integrity Regime.

Founded in 1811, SNC-Lavalin Group Inc., a Montreal-based company, provides end to end engineering
services in a variety of industry sectors, including mining and metallurgy, oil and gas, environment and water,
infrastructure and clean power. With approximately 54,000 employees, the Company has a strong foothold in
North America (45%) but is also represented in Europe and the Middle East/Africa (20% each) and in Asia
(15%).

SNC-Lavalin has lived through one of the greatest challenges of its 106-year history. We believe that the
company has been able to emerge from this difficult period as a resuilt of the unrelenting commitment of ifs
employees to excellence in ethics and integrity. We have taken many concrete steps to entrench the values and
principles espousead in our Ethics and Compliance Program deep into the culture of our company. .
In the spirit of one of our core principles, we want to collaborate as fully and extensively as possible as it relates
to these important consultations. Only through high quality and exemplary levels of cooperation will the
Government of Canada be able to achieve its overali objectives 1o take “action against corporate wrongdoing and
to hold companies accountable for such misconduct.” in this regard, the capacity to be able to self-report
remains at the heari of both sats of consultations.

ol i ~
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The time is right to address especially the DPA, as well as the IR. But time is also of the essence. The
international playing field is not level between Canadian and foreign engineering and consulting competitors from
the United States, the United Kingdom, France and soon from Australia. SNC-Lavalin fully supports the need to
fake the time to conduct a credible, fair, open and transparent consultation process. However, Canada is clearly
behind in terms of using all possible tools to deal as effectively as possible with corporate economic crime. In
particular, Canada does not have the DPA tool at its disposal and the IR needs further enhancements to align
with our key global trading pariners. Accordingly, we urge the Government of Canada to move forward as
expeditiously as possible.

It is in this spirit that you will find enclosed answers to questions associated with each consultation. These sets
of responses, and appendices, will hopefully demonstrate that SNC-Lavalin shares the Government of Canada’s
commitment to uphold the highest ethical business practices and, as a result, for the present and in the future will
remain a trusted supplier to PSP Canada.

I would be pleased to answer any questions you or your staff may have on the atiachments. Importantly, | would
appreciate the opportunity to discuss SNC-Lavalin’s recent structural and operational changes, improvements to
its governance, its world class compliance and integrity regime as well as our short and long term strategic
objectives to grow and prosper from our Canadian base in Montreal, Quebec.

Until such time, | wish you best of luck with this important consultation and to the work that must follow.

sipcerety,

heil Bruce™\
{Presidant and Chief Executive Officer
SNG-EETAlNn

C.C. The Honourable Scotl Brison, P.C., M.P.,, B.Comm.
President of the Treasury Board
Treasury Board of Canada

The Honourable Navdeep Bains, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Innovation, Science and Economic Development
innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada

SNC-Lavalin Inc.
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SNC-LAVALIN

The Honourable William Morneau, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Finance
Finance Canada

The Honourable Jody Wilson-Raybould, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Justice and Attorney General of Canada
Justice Canada

The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Foreign Affairs
Global Affairs Canada

The Honourable James G. Carr, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Natural Resources
Natural Resources Canada

The Honourable Frangois-Philippe Champagne, P.C., M.P.
Minister of international Trade

Global Affairs Canada

Encl.: (2)

SNC-Lavalin inc.
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Octoper 13, 2017

Submission to the DPA/Integrity Regime Consultation
DPA Submission

Serious cases of corporate economic crime should be dealt with severely. However, it is unfair that the actions of
one or more rogue employees should tarnish a company’s reputation, as wall as jeopardize its future success and
its employees’ livelihoods. While the commercial organization bears some responsibility for its employee’s
misconduct, prosecution with a guilty plea could preciude it from doing business with key public and private secter
customers, in Canada and abroad. The best course forward is for Canada to adopt the deferred prosecution
agreement {DPA) to combat corporate economic crime. DPAs already are used or being developed in several
countries {Appendix 1}. This leaves Canada at a distinct competitive disadvantage. Investors may be reluctant to
expose themselves {o an uncertain enforcement regime in Canada, resulting in additional legal risks. Canadian
companies have aiready lost significant contracts abroad because global competitors have been able to impugn
the integrity of the firm, despite comprehensive remediation actions, while corruption charges are pending.

Question 1: In your view, what are the key advantages and disadvantages of DPAs as a tool to address corporate
criminal liability in Canada?

Arguments in favour of DPAs:
e Encourage seif-reporting by companies {Canada’s Integrity Regime discourages reporting — the conseduences
are potentiaily dire while there is no specific safe-harbour regime for coming forward}.

e Improved enforcement outcomes — prosecution costs/risks avoided, justice served by deterrence effect of
fines and criminal prosecution of corporate officers, monitorship akin tc a probation period.

e Improve compliance and corporate culture.

e Avoid undue negative consequences for stakeholiders, including employees, investors and other third parties
who had no involvement in the crime.

Arguments against DPAs: The most common cited arguments against DPAs are:

e Could weaken the deterrent effect of prosecution.
e Perception that DPAs can allow companies to ‘buy their way out of trouble’.

¢ Do DPAs provide sufficient incentive to companies to encourage self-reporting misconduct?

These arguments against have no merit. DPAs negotiated in the USA, and recently in the UK, have highiighted
the importance of transparency, self-reporting and cooperation as it relates to such offences. Without the DPA
tool, there would be far fewer cases of misconduct brought to the public’s attention. The Canadian DPA s
recommended as an additional tool, not as the only tool, in the combat against corporate economic crime. s a
more efficient and effective way of holding organizations accountable without the cost and uncertainty
fraditionally assodiated with criminat trials.

Question 2: For which offences do you think DPAs should be available and why?

e initially, DPA’s should be available in alleged cases of economic crime by organizations. This includes offences
such as fraud, false accounting, corruption, foreign bribery and money laundering {or dealing with the
proceeds of crime), exportation and/or importation of prohibited or restricted goods, and related offences.
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s Why? So the Government of Canada can focus on an area where Canada could reaily use another tool with
respect to prosecuting economic crime by organizations.

However, the Government of Canada shouid have the flexibility to expand the scope of use of DPAsto a
broader set of offences by organizations. For now, a narrower scope is appropriate with the flexibility to
expand as Canada becomes more comfortable and experienced with this new too! to combat corporate
economic crime.

e in principle, the DPA tool can be applied in other areas of corporate offenses, such as: health and safety,
environment, other regulatory offences, or even other prosecuting authorities.

s Generally, DPAs should not be made available to individuals. Companies seeking DPAs should be required to
cooperate fully with authorities to bring the individuals who engaged in the alieged misconduct to justice.
The authorities should be tough on individuals who engaged in the alieged misconduct. Companies do not act
on their own — they can and do only act through individuals and those individuals ought to be held to account
for their breaches of both law and company policy.

Question 3: What role do you think the courts should play with respect to DPAs?

There is a role for the courts with respect to DPAs. The overall question for the courts is whether the proposed or
draft DPA would bring the administration of justice into disrepute. For example, some US courts have rejected US
DPAs where the company was to pay a sanction but there were no consequences for the individual employees who
caused the company to breach US faw — it was felt by those US judges that letting the individuals in those cases
escape justice was unacceptable. Also, the courts should provide their views on whether the draft terms and
conditions of the DPA are fair, reasonable and proportionate.

s The courts involvement in the DPA process should be to provide ‘judicial scrutiny’ that is independent, fair, -
impartial, and transparent.

® The involvement of the courts/of a judge should instil confidence and certainty into the DPA process.

s There should be oversight that the final agreed upon terms between the public prosecutor and the
organization appropriately address the alleged wrongdoing by both individuals and the corporate employer.

e [tis notthe role of the courts to sentence or to try the offence.

It is appropriate for a court to provide their views to the public prosecutor on ways and means to amend the draft
DPA {before the court], subject to final approval of both the public prosecutor and the company.

Question 4: What factors should to be taken into account in offering a DPA?

e To maintain and uphold independence, the offer to enter into DPA discussions should be at the discretion of
the public prosecutor. However, sole discretion should not just rest with the public prosecutor. There should
be an administrative process by which an organization can proactively submit a DPA or settlement proposal
without prejudice to any future proceeding, or to the independence of the public prosecutor. This would not
only enhance self-reporting, but it would deal with an obvious gap in the current public administration of
such matters. Additionally, there is merit to explicitly acknowledging the possibility of retrospective
application of 2 DPA.

s An offer to enter into such discussions should not be construed as a commitment of the public prosecutor to
provide a DPA to the organization.

e if the public interest would be met by entering into a DPA with an organization, then the public prosecutor
should give such action its full consideration.

s The public interest choice to enter into DPA negotiations should be based on the following {non-exhaustive)
factors:
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o ' Degree of pro-active cooperation with the Crown.

O

Degree of self-reporting.

O

History of similar conduct prior to the alleged wrongdoing, ie, reguiatory, financial, etc.

The existence of a corporate compliance programme, or substantive evidence that the organization has
engaged proactively in remediation by building or improving a credible and effective compliance
programme since the alleged misconduct.

O

(@]

Whether the offending conduct represents the actions of individuals or is sanctioned by company policies
and practice {as approved by the board of directors) and whether those individuals who engagad in the
" misconduct are still with the organization.

o Whether the organization engaged in structural organizational reforms to improve its reporting structures
and to take steps to avoid any future alleged misconduct.

The existence of credible and effective steps to change the culture of the organization.

O

That a criminal conviction is likely to have disproportionate negative impacts on innocent people, ie,
shareholiders, pension plan holders, employees, suppliers and other stakeholders.

O

O

That the impact of prosecution leads to substantive economic/commercial damage to the organization,
such as the inability to provide services in Canada, in North America and in global markets with
government contracts, lower revenues from debarment by governments and/or exclusion by key clients,
impairment of competition in contested markets, negative impacts on the Canadian supply chain,
negative impact on governments’ procurement, defence and infrastructure markets, and substantive
redundancies of innocent personnel.

e That there was substantive economic/commercial damage to the organization in the intervening period
between the alleged misconduct and the decision to enter into DPA nagotiations.

e QOther existing or newly created forms of guidance for the public presecutor may also be taken into account in
the offering of a DPA to an organization.
Question 5: When would a DPA not be appropriate?
A DPA would not be appropriate if it is not in the public interest for the public prosecutor to engage in such an
action. The factors that may contribute to a DPA as not appropriate include:
e The seriousness of the alleged misconduct...the most important factor in the decision to prosecute or to not
prosecute and offer a DPA negotiation.
o | Asignificant level of harm is done to the public, or to victims of the alleged wrongdoing.
o Asubstantial negative impact on the integrity/confidence of markets, or of governments.

o . There are severe aggravating features to the misconduct, eg, multi-jurisdictional, tock careful planning
{pre-meditated}, involved several senior executives and elements of board approval in the organization.

e A history of similar conduct — repeat offender.
e Failure to prosecute for similar or for more serious breaches of the law.

e The organization either had no {or an ineffective) compliance organization, or has not made significant
progress to establish an effective compliance program since the alieged misconduct.

e The organization has been previously warned, sanctioned, or criminal charges have been laid with no
substantial changes to prevent such conduct in the future.

e Complete iack of collaboration with authorities.
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Question 6: What terms should be included in a DPA?

A DPA should include some or all of the following, depending upon the specific case or situation {non-exhaustive
and flexible):

e A statement of facts relating to the offence.

e Atime period for the duration of the DPA (a reasonable period for the government to become satisfied that
remediation steps are complete and the likelihood of a recurrent offence is slim to non-existent}.

s Acknowledgement of responsibility for the conduct and that if similar conduct recurs during the DPA term
that the company may be prosecuted for the original as well as the new crime.

s Obligation to cooperate with any investigation and prosecution of company staff.
o Disgorgement of profits made from the misconduct, through payment of fines (Appendix 2).

e A financial penalty that takes into account penaities imposed on competitors and the seriousness of the
crime, and factors such as collaboration with authorities. This is perhaps done as in the UK and US DPA
models -- with the application of a discount to the financial penalty.

e An obligation to replace implicated individuals who may be stil with the organization.

s An obligation to cooperate with any current or future investigation of the alleged past offence

e The consequences for the defendant if it engages in further misconduct

e Implementing or improving a company compliance program.

e imposition of a monitor for a period of time, where appropriate, to audit compliance.

e A public statement from the Crown and the company about the DPA.
The benefits of a DPA scheme for Canada will be achieved with a model that does not require the negotiation of an
admission to criminal Hiability for alieged misconduct.
Question 7: What factors should be taken into account in setting the duration of a DPA?

e The maximum/minimum duration of a DPA shouid depend upon the circumstances of the alleged misconduct
and the facts provided during the negotiation

e Each DPA should have an expiry date, where the DPA no longer has effect.

o An expiry date provides clarity as to the duration of the DPA for both the public prosecutor {the Crown} and
the organization’s leadership.

Question 8: Under what circumstances should publication be waived or delayed?

e A careful balance needs to be maintained between ensuring public confidence in the DPA as a tcol to combat
economic crime with the need to provide organizations and their representatives with a high level of
certainty and confidentiality to negotiate the DPA. Organizations with alleged misconduct are less likely to
come forward to negotiate a DPA if their negotiating position might be compromised with early publication of
facts, etc. Therefore, there should be no publication in the initial stages of the DPA negotiation.

e Should Canada choose court oversight for the Canadian DPA, then it is likely that a sitting judge will provide a
reasoned explanation for their satisfaction and the appropriateness with the negotiated DPA. This reasoning
should remain private until the DPA is approved and then generally should be made available to the pubtic.

e Where such a judicial reasoning, or agreed upon statement of facts, should be waived or delayed is where
there may be restrictions that are necessary to protect the credibility and process of other ongoing or future
prosecutions against the organization, or former employees. This should also apply to the actual publication
of the announcement of a DPA between the public prosecutor and a commercial organization.
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Question 9: How should non-compliance be addressed?
The public prosecutor shculd provide the organization with an opportunity to address the non-compliance.

if there are repeated examples of non-compliance, beyond the organization’s control, the organization should
have the opportunity to address the non-compliance and to renegotiate the terms of the DPA with the public
prosecuior.

The court should determine, upon advice of the public prosecutor, whether non-compliance has taken place.
There should be a factual finding as to the degree of the non-compliance.

There should be conseguences for non-compliance of a DPA, including possibly: a financial penalty, additional
terms/conditions, extension of the expiry date of the DPA, or even termination of the DPA

Question 10: When should facts disclosed during DPA negotiation be admissible in a prosecution against a
company?

See Question 8. Facts disciosed during DPA negotiations should be admissible in a future prosecution against a
company for other similar crimes, subject to any necessary protections associated with the credibility and process
of the other ongoing or future proceedings against the company, or former employees. Further, on the
presumption that Canada will consider a made-in-Canada DPA that is somewhat or closely aligned with the
UK/Australia models, then disclosure obligations that are reflective of our mutual common law traditions should
apply to the entire DPA process, including when facts disciosed during the DPA negotiation should be admissible as
evidence in another procesding.

Question 11: How should compliance monitors be selected and governed?

independent compliance monitors should report directly to the office of the public prosecutor but be engaged by
the organization in accordance with the DPA between the public prosecutor and the organization.

Selection of independent monitors should be made on the basis of a mutually agreed set of criteria/terms. The
monitorship selection process used in the Integrity Regime by the Department of Public Services and Procurement
could serve weil as a model for the Public Prosecutor. '

There should be a terms of reference for the engagement of the independent monitor between the organization
and the public prosecutor, and then a letter of engagement between the monitor and the organization, The terms
of reference and engagement of the independent monitor for the public prosecutor should take into consideration
the mandates of other monitors that may aiready be in place with the organization.

Question 12: What use should be made of compliance monitoring reports?

Compliance Monitoring reports should provide an effective review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
ethics and complianze programme of the organization, measured against the integrity guidelines/principles or
other criteria of the public prosecutor, and the organization’s compliance with its other obligations under the DPA.
The monitor’s report should provide recommendations for future improvements to the ethics and compliance
programme of the organization, and to the organization’s compliance with the DPA, and implementation of these
recommendations should be made in a timely manner by the organization. Implementation plans to action the
monitor’s recommendations should be made by the organization in writing.

Question 13: Under what circumstances should victim compensation {i.e. anticipatory restitution) be included as
a DPA term?

in the case of economic crime, the “victim” may not be an identifiable individual. 1t may be difficult to determine
how restitution should be calculated, apportioned among and/or paid to victims. Further, broader victim
compensation generally falls within provincial jurisdiction, and may not be applicable in the case of a foreign-based
offence.
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Any anticipatory restitution as part of the terms of a DPA should take into account other actions and proceedings
before the courts {to the extent possible given differing jurisdictions).

if the Government of Canada imposes a material fine, such as a penaity reflecting the profit earned from the
misconduct, it may not be appropriate to impose a further restitution obligation for an offence.

Generaily, appropriate restitution for an alleged victim needs to be proven separately in the most appropriate
jurisdiction. The calcuiation of the amount of restitution is generally quite burdensome and is perhaps best left to
other proceedings.

Other Comments or Suggestions

A made in Canada DPA should clearly appily when charges are pending before the courts at the time of entry into
force of legislation. Parliament can enact legisiation to apply as of a time prior to its entry into force. While
retrospective application of new laws are not the norm, there are many exceptions to that rule. Retrospective
application in the case of the introduction of DPAs for Canada is a recommended and effective way of adjusting for
the transition into a DPA regime. There would not be interference with the functions of the courts nor any
impairment of judicial independence.

introduction of a new tool to combat economic crime that provides an alternative dispute resolution mechanism
should be welcome. This is especially the case given the pressures that Canada’s courts are facing in light of the
Supreme Court’s judgments in R. v. Jordan.
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Billions

Appendix 1: US Corporate DPAs and NPAs, 2000-2016
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Note: Includes both DOJ and SEC DPAs and NPAs. Also, UK has entered into 2 DPAs so far in 2017.
Source: Gibson & Dunn, 2017 Mid-Year Update on Corporate Non-Prosecution Agreements (NPAS) and Deferred
Prosecution Agreements (DPAS}, July 2017
Appendix 2: Total US monetary recoveries related to
DPAs/NPAs, 2000-2016
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Note: Includes both DOJ and SEC DPAs and NPAs. Also, UK has entered into 2 DPAs so far in 2017, with financial
penalties, disgorgement of profits and other compensation valued at more than 1.16 biflion British pounds.

Source: Gibson & Dunn, 2017 Mid-Year Update on Corporate Non-Prosecution Agreements /NFAS) and Deferred
Prosecutior Agreements {DPAS), July 2017
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Submission to the DPA/Integrity Regime Consultation
Integrity Regime Submission

Question 1: To what extent, if any, should the duration of ineligibility and/or suspension be modified to ensure
appropriateness while continuing to mitigate risk?

The decision to render ineligible or suspend an organization, and the duration, should be commensurate with the
public interest and proportionate with the seriousness of the misconduct. On the duration of ineligibility and/or
suspension, PSP’s Integrity Regime current rules do not appear to be aligned with other countries, namely our key
trading partners {per case studies in discussion document). The current duration rules leave the Canadian business
community at a distinct competitive disadvantage as compared to other suppliers of services and procurement in
other countries.

There should be more flexibility built into the sanctions part of the regime — an automatic 5-10 year disbarment is
a heavy consequence, and there are multiple possible crimes {and degree of corporate culpability, or notin the
case of rogue employees acting in defiance of well-articulated company policies) that can trigger application of the
Integrity Regime. There should be a measure of discretion in applying disbarment to ensure that the punishment
fits the actual crime of the organization {see answers to questions 9 and 10}.

The Government of Canada should align its procurement ineligibility and suspension duration guidelines to that of
its major trading partners and specifically to the United States. As indicated in the discussion document, discretion
allows for an organization in the United States o be excluded from bidding on procurement contracts for up to
three years, with the possibility of extension. This also means that discretion allows for a zero debarment time
period. There should also be a clearly delineated process put in place for the ineligible organization to reduce the
period of ineligibility.

Question 2: How could the exercise of greater discretion be built into the Integrity Regime to address issues
associated with periods of ineligibility? What factors should be considered in determining whether a supplier
should benefit from discretion?

Rendering an organization ineligible is a very sericus action, and it should clearly be in the public interest to take
such action. The causes for declaring an organization ineligible should be cutlined in the integrity Regime but it
does not necessarily mean that the organization should in fact be rendered ineligible. The seriousness of actions
by the organization or omissions of remedial measures or mitigating factors should be considered in making any
ineligibility decision. The following factors should be considered in determining whether a supplier should benefit
from discretion:

e Has the organization put in place effective standards of conduct and internal compliance controls,
including review procedures as well as ethics and compliance training programs.

¢  Did the organization bring the alleged misconduct as a cause for ineligibility to the attention of the
Government of Canada in a timely manner?

e Did the organization engage in a full investigation of the circumstances associated with the cause of the
ineligibility?

¢ The degree of cooperation by the organization with the Government of Canada.

e  Whether the organization has agreed to make restitution related to the offending activity.

e  Whether the organization has taken action against the individuals responsible for the alleged misconduct.

e Whether the organization has put in place remedial measures, including those recommended by the
Government of Canada.
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®  Whether the organization’s senior management acknowledges the seriousness of the misconduct and put
in place measuras to prevent recurrence, eg, tone from the top, whistle blowing actions, etc.
s Mitigating factors that should be taken into account, as proposed by the organization.

Consideration should be given to a revision mechanism, whereby a debarred organization can ask for a
revision after a certain time, if it believes that the above factors have evoived since the debarment was
imposed upon the organization.

Question 3: Are there other offences that call into question the integrity of a supplier that should be considered
for inclusion within the Ineligibility and Suspension Policy? If so, what are they?

Other offences that call into question the integrity of the supplier should not necessarily be specifically included in
the Government’s ineligibility and Suspension Policy. Indeed, such specificity may not be consistent with the
Government’s focus in this consultation on federal government procurement contracts and the integrity of the
federa! procurement system.

There is reason to be concerned with the possible extraterritorial reach of the Government of Canada in this
regard.. An integrity regime that takes into account civil or provincial offences, other federal offences related to
corporate wrongdoing, allegations, or debarment decisions in other jurisdictions could be made without full regard
for the systems of jurisprudence associated with the other jurisdictions, leniency provisions or other rules therein.
The focus of the Government of Canada should remain within the realm of Canadian government(s) and
specifically with respect to the procurement of goods and services.

For example, Germany and Sweden do not subject organizations to criminal prosecution. However, it is indeed
possible if not likely that 2ach country has equivalent if not more stringent and significant administrative
provisions to deal with misconduct of organizations in those countries. In the case of Germany this seems to be
the case. Such administrative provisions could be as adequate or more adequate to the task of preserving the
integrity of procurement regimes in those countries. Thus, the risk associated with the Government of Canada’s
procurement regime is mitigated while the Government of Canada may rot be as familiar with third country
administrative rules and provisions.

Question 4: What factors should be considered in determining whether new offences should be included?

The Government of Canada should consider including in its policy the right to render ineligible or to suspend any
supplier who has engaged in misconduct that indicates a lack of business integrity that seriously and directly
impacts the responsibility of the Government of Canada as a contractor or subcontractor.

Question 5: At what point should the Government of Canada consider actions regarding corporate wrongdoing
when making a determination of suspension or ineligibility? What wrongdoing or action would warrant a federal
response?

The Government of Canada should not consider actions regarding corporate wrongdoing on the basis of
allegations, or when under investigation, to determine whether to suspend or render ineligible an organization.
Assessment of future risks is not the primary principle upon which to render such serious actions. Rather, such
actions could be contemplated when it has been concluded/determined that immediate action (in the present) is
required to protect the public interest.

A key question before the Department of Public Services and Procurement is whether it has the administrative
capacity to engage in such actions.
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Question 6: How should Integrity Regime determinations of ineligibility be applied to non-procurement federal
services?

integrity Regime determinations of ineligibility should only be applied to procurement related federal
procurement. Such determinations should not be applied to non-procurement federal services. The criteria for
the determination of ineligibility differ across various government agencies. Best practices should be shared
between the PSP Canada and various Canadian government agencies who conduct due difigence and their own
assessments of eligibility.

Question 7: What impact should a debarment decision made in another jurisdiction or by another organization
have on a supplier’s status under the Integrity Regime?

Debarment decisions made in other jurisdictions by another organization should have no impact on a supplier’s
status under the Integrity Regime. Specific reference is made in the discussion paper to the practice of cross
debarment by the five multilateral development banks {(ViDBs}. This is an especiaily questionable practice that
would sacrifice the jurisdictional independence of Canadian federal agencies. it also results in ad hoc decision
making that may be subject to the policy priorities of new governments, such as recently with respect to
international development contracting in the Canadian government context.

Cross debarment leads to confusion between jurisdictions who are parties to cross debarment agreements and
those that are not party to such provisions in other fora. Further, the Government of Canada’s criteria and process
in determining eligibility will undoubtedly be different than that of MDBs. This could result in a debarment
outcome in one jurisdiction, but not in another jurisdiction.

Rather than multiplying the deterrence factor, cross debarment undermines the capacity and capabilities of the
organization to improve itself and to develop stronger practices regarding ethics and conformity, and to move
forward as a good corporate citizen.

if an organization is debarred by a provincial jurisdiction or agency using similar criteria as the Government of
Canada, then it makes sense to at least examine with greater scrutiny such actions viz. the organization’s
relationship with the Government of Canada. However, the reverse is also true. If a provincial agency, such as the
Authorité des Marchés Financiers, makes a decision not to debar an organization, utilizing its own criteria, then the
Government of Canada should take this provincial action into consideration as it relates to the supplier’s status
under the integrity Regime.

Question 8: What type of measures should be taken to preciude those with known membership in or
associations with organized crime from being awarded a federal contract or real property agreement?

There are very limited measures that can or should be faken to preclude those with known membership in or
associations with organized crime from being awarded a federal contract or real property agreement. To repeat,
the Government of Canada should generally not take actions to preciude, suspend or debar on the basis of
allegations, or associations.

However, if there is enough evidence that the public interest could be negatively impacted by the award of such a
federal contract or agreement, then the Government of Canada should consider giving itself the discretion to
preclude such an award/agreement (if it does not already have such discretion).

Steps could be taken in the procurement process, as well in the descriptions of suppliers found in relevant
government data bases, to be as up to date as possible with respect to known membership and associations with
organized crime.
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Question 9: Should application of the Integrity Regime be broadened to include federal entities beyond
departments and agencies? What factors should be considered when determining what other organizations
should be required to adopt the Integrity Regime?

and

Question 10: How could the Government of Canada use the Integrity Regime to achieve other social, economic
or environmental policy objectives?

Amendments are required to the Integrity Regime, including some that are mentioned in this submission, before
consideration to apply the IR on a broader basis, to include federal entities beyond departments and agencies, or
to achieve other social, economic or environmental policy objectives. Some of the policy objectives indicated in
the discussion document are indeed deserving of support, including for example the UK's Modern Slavery Act. But
the IR needs to be brought into alignment with similar regimes in other countries. it needs some adjustrnent so
that the Government of Canada can truly “use its purchasing to positively and uniformly influence corporate
behavior.”

As constructed, the existing regime does not promote self-disciosure. The punitive consequences of the integrity
Regime - 5-10 years disbarment from bidding or working on Federal contracts (with cascading effect on provincial
governments, foreign governments and private sector contracts - are sufficiently draconian to preclude most if
not all companies from evar self-reporting acts of misconduct under the current integrity Regime. The Integrity
Regime does not allow a company to purge itseif of an offence by, for example, coming forward to the government
to say “these 2 employees engaged in misconduct, we have fired them as their acts are inconsistent with our
policies, we have tightened processes to make their misconduct more difficult in future, etc...”

Effectively, companies should be allowed to properly disclaim individual acts of misconduct as not reflecting the
“mens rea” or true intent of the company. In such cases there should be jittie or no conseguence to the company
if the latter has clearly demonstrated by its behaviour, promptly after the misconduct is discovered and
investigated, that it completely disclaims such conduct and itself substantively punishes and/or dismisses without
compensation or reward the individua! perpetrators of the misconduct. The company can send no clearer signal to
ail its other employees that it means what its policies say and will not condone or reward misconduct. If there is to
be any penalty in such circumstance, it should be proportionate to the negligence, if any, of the company in
publishing its compliance program, training staff on the compliance program, and enforcing its compliance
program. If the company has not been sc negligent, {per a previous answer) then no punishment of the company is
necessary as its own behaviour is seif-correcting. When it comes to fostering a culture of good ethics in business,
as the saying goes: “One good sacking is worth a thousand memos.”

By not having a self-disclosure safe-harbour, the Integrity Regime actually makes it harder for companies to dismiss
staff for misconduct - the consequences to the company of proving in court the employee misconduct, where the
misbehaving employee disagrees he/she is being dismissed from their employment for cause, expose the company
to potentially 5-10 years of debarment and the resultant impact to the company’s eligibility to compete for
Canadian government and other customer contracts. If the company guietly dismisses the employee and pays
themn compensation {as it must) because cause cannot reasonably be proven publicly in court due to the
disbarment risk under the integrity Regime, that can be made to look as though the company is rewarding a bad
employee for their misconduct. Finally, that absence of a safe-harbour for self-disclosure may expose companies
to blackmail by their current or former employees who are aware of misconduct — their own or that of ancther
employee.

In sum, the Integrity Regime should have a safe-harbour provision for self-disclosure, and should not lead to
punishment of companies that have legitimately disavowed their employee’s misconduct in ways that make it clear
the company itself had no criminal intent to commit the misconduct.
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The Honourable Carla Qualtrough, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Public Services and. Procuremenl Canada
11 Laurier Street, Building: Portage il R & LH e
Tower A, Room 18A1 and 7 TR NS waa s
PSP Canada, Room 10A1 o

Gatineau, Quebec . -

e e, .

Canada K1A 955
Deferred Prasecution Agreement and Integrlty Regime consultation:
Expanding Canada s toolkit to address corporate wrongdolng
»
Dear Minister,

On behalf of SNC-Lavalin, | welcome your Government's decision to engage in consultations on expanding
Canada's toolkit to address corporate wrongdomg lhrough a Deferred- Prosecullon Agreement (DPA) and further
enhancements to the Depariment of Public Services and Procurement Canada's Inlegrily Regime.

Founded in 1911, SNC-Lavalin Group inc., a Montreal-based company, provides end o end engineering
services in a variely of industry seclors; iriduding mining and metallurgy, oil.and gas, epviro_nmenl and water,
infrastructure and clean power. With. apprdicimately 54,000 employees, the Company has a strong foothold in
North America (45%) but is also represenled in Europe and lhe Middle East/Africa (20% each) and in Asia
(15%).

"SNC-Lavalin has lived through one of the greatest challenges of its106-year history. We believe that the
company has been able to emerge from this difficult period as a result of the unrelenting commitment of its
employees to excellence in ethics and integrity. We have taken many concrete sleps to entrench the values and
principles espoused in our Ethics and Compliance Program deep inlo the culture of our company.

In the spirit of one of our core principles, we want {o collaborate as fully and extensively as possible as it relates
to these imporiant consultations. Only through high quality and exemplary levels of cooperation will the
Government of Canada be able to achieve its overall objectives to take *action against corporate wrongdoing and
ta hold companies accountable for such misconduct.” In this regard, the capacityto-be able to self-report
remains al the heart of both sels of consultations.

SNC-Lavalin Inc
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The time is right to address especially the DPA, as well as the IR. Bul time is also of the essence. The
international playing field is not level between Canadian and foreign engineering and consulting competitors from
the United States, the United Kingdom, France and soon from Australia. SNC-Lavalin fully suppons the need to
take the time to conduct a credible, fair, open and transparent consultation process. However, Canada is clearly
behind in terms of using all possible tools to deal as effeclively as possible with corporate economic crime. In
particular, Canada does not have the DPA tool at its disposal and the IR needs further enhancements to align
with our key global frading pariners. Accordingly, we urge the Gevernment of Canada to move forward as
expeditiously as possible.

It is in this spirit that you will find enclosed answers to questions associated with each consultalion. These sels
of responses, and appendices, will hopefully demonstrate that SNC-Lavalin shares the Government of Canada’s
commitment to uphold the highest ethical business praclices and, as a result, for the present and in the future will
remain a trusted supplier to PSP Canada.

| would be pleased to answer any questions you or your staff may have on the attachments. Imporantly, | would
appreciate the opporiunity to discuss SNC-Lavalin’s recent structural and operational changes, improvements to
its govemance, its world class compliance and integrity regime as well as our short and long term strategic
objectives to grow and prosper from our Canadian base in Montreal, Quebec.

Until such time, [ wish you best of luck with this important consultation and 1o the work that must follow.

Sinterelv.

N&il Bruce ™~

President and Chiel Executive Officer
SNG-tavain

c.c. . The Honourable Scoll Brison, P.C., M;P.. B.Comm.
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
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- Minister, of Foreign Affair

B The Hono'l:JrébIe:' James G Carr, 'P.YC.,' MP.
Minister of Nalural Resources - '

Global Affairs Canada’ .- -
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MP.

. The Honz;urabfg Chrystia Freeland, P.C., MP.
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Submission to the DPA/Integrity Regime Consultation
DPA Submission

Serious cases of corporate economic crime should be dealt with severely. However, it is unfair that the actions of
one or more rogue employees should tarnish a company’s reputation, as well as jeopardize its future success and
its employees’ livelihoods. While the commercial organization bears some responsibility for its employee’s
misconduct, prosecution with a guilty plea could preclude it from doing business with key public and private sector
customers, in Canada and abroad. The best course forward is for Canada to adopt the deferred prosecution
agreement (DPA) to combat corporate economic crime. DPAs already are used or being developed in several
countries (Appendix 1). This leaves Canada at a distinct competitive disadvantage. Investors may be reluctant to
expose themselves to an uncertain enforcement regime in Canada, resulting in additional legal risks. Canadian
companies have already lost significant contracts abroad because global competitors have been able to impugn
the integrity of the firm, despite comprehensive remediation actions, while corruption charges are pending."

Question 1: In your view, what are the key advantages and dlsadvantages of DPAs as a tool to address corporate
criminal liability In Canada?

Arguments in favour of DPAs:

* Encourage self-reporting by companies (Canada’s Integrity Regime discourages reporting — the consequences
are potentially dire while there is no specific safe-harbour regime for coming forward).

« Improved enforcement outcomes — prosecution costs/risks avoided, justice served by deterrence effect of
fines and crimina! prosecution of corporate officers, monitorship akin to a probation period.

¢ Improve compliance and corporate culture.

* Avold undue negative consequences for stakeholders, including employees, investors and other third parties
who had no involvement in the crime.

Arguments against DPAs: The most common cited arguments against DPAs are:

e Could weaken the deterrent effect of prosecution.

* Perception that DPAs can allow companies to ‘buy their way out of trouble’.

+» Do DPAs provide sufficient incentive to companies to encourage self-reporting misconduct? -

These arguments against have no merit. DPAs negotiated in the USA, and recently in the UK, have highlighted

the importance of transparency, self-reporting and cooperation as it relates to such offences. Without the DPA
tool, there would be far fewer cases of misconduct brought to the public’s attention. The Canadian DPA s
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Why? So the Government of Canada can focus on an area where Canadcl could really use another.tookwith,
respect to prosecuting economic crime by orgamzatxons - -

However, the Govarnment of Canada should have the flexablhty to expand the scope of use of DPAS to a.

economic crime.’
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~

Degree of pro-active cooperation with: the Crown.
Degree of self-reporting.
History of similar conduct prior to the alleged wrongdoing, ie, regulatory, financial, etc.

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
and practice {as approved by the board of directors) and whether those individuals who engaged in the
misconduct are still with the organization.

Whether the organization engaged in structural organizational reforms to Improve its reporting structures
and to take steps to avoid any future alleged misconduct.

The existence of credible and effective steps to change the culture of the organization.

That a criminal conviction is likely to have disproportionate negative impacts on innocent people, ie,
shareholders, pension plan holders, employees, suppliers and other stakeholders.

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

« That there was substantive economic/commercial damage to the organization in the intervening period
between the alleged misconduct and the decision to enter into DPA negotiations.

e Other existing or newly created forms of guidance for the public prosecutor may also be taken into account in
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

¢ The seriousness of the alleged misconduct...the most important factor in the decision to prosecute or to not
prosecute and offer a DPA negotiation.

(o]

(o]

o

A significant level of harm is done to the public, or to victims of the alleged wrongdoing.
A substantial negative impact on the integrity/confidence of markets, or of governments.

There are severe aggravating features to the misconduct, eg, multi-jurisdictional, took careful planning
(pre-meditated), involved several senior executives and elements of board approval in the organization.

» Ahistory of similar conduct — repeat offender.

e Failure to prosecute for similar or for more serious breaches of the law.

« The organization either had no (or an ineffective) compliance organization, or has not made significant
progress to establish an effective compliance program since the alleged misconduct.

¢ The organization has been previously warned, sanctioned, or criminal charges have been laid with no
substantial changes to prevent such conduct in the future.

o Complete lack of collaboration with authorities.
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Question 6: What terms should be included i in a DPA?

A DPA should include some or. al| of the followmg, dependlng upon the .\pecmc case or srtuatlon (non exhaustwe
and flexible}): - T . .

e A statement of_vfacts relatmg to the offence

rnment to become satlsfled that

s A tlme penod for: ‘the duratlon ofvthe : sonable; d-for:
ukehhood of a recurrent offence is shm to non-exnstent)

" remediation step;.are complete‘.and,__th

 An expiry date provid farit
' the organization's leadership. -

- of the announcement ofa DPA between the pubhc prosecutor .and a commerclal_okgan:zat«on
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Question 9: How should non-cbmpliance be addressed?
The public prosecutor should provide the organization with an opportunity to address the non-compliance.

If there are repeated examples of non-complianée, beyond the organization’s control, the organization should
have the opportunity to address the non-compliance and to renegotiate the terms of the DPA with the public
prosecutor.

The court should determine, upon advice of the public prosecutor, whether non-compliance has taken place.
‘There should be a factual finding as to the degree of the non-compliance.

There should be consequences for non-compliance of a DPA, including possibly: a financial penalty, additional
terms/conditions, extension of the expiry date of the DPA, or even termination of the DPA '

Question 10: When should facts disclosed during DPA negotiation be admissible in a prosecution against a
company? : i

See Question 8. Facts disclosed during DPA negotiations should be admissible in a future prosecution against a
company for other similar crimes, subject to any necessary protections associated with the credibility and process
of the other ongoing or future proceedings against the company, or former employees. Further, onthe
presumption that Canada will consider a made-in-Canada DPA that is somewhat or closely aligned with the
UK/Australia models, then disclosure obligations that are reflective of our mutual common law traditions should
apply to the entire DPA process, including when facts disclosed during the DPA negotiation should be admissible as
evidence in another proceeding. '

Question 11: How should compliance monitors be selected and governed?

Independent compliance monitors should report directly to the office of the public prosecutor but be engaged by
the organization in accordance with the DPA between the public prosecutor and the organization.

Selection of independent monitors should be made on the basis of a mutually agreed set of criteria/terms. The
~ monitorship selection process used in the Integrity Regime by the Department of Public Services and Procurement
could serve well as a model for the Public Prosecutor.

There should be a terms of reference for the engagement of the independent monitor between the organization
and the public prosecutor, and then a letter of engagement between the monitor and the organization, The terms
of reference and engagement of the independent monitor for the public prosecutor should take into consideration
the mandates of other monitors that may already be in place with the organization.

Question 12: What use should be made of compliance monitoring reports?

Compliance Monitoring reports should provide an effective review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
ethics and compliance programme of the organization, measured against the integrity guidelines/principles or
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
monitor's recommendations should be made by the organization in writing.

Question 13: Under what circumstances should victim compensation {i.e. anticipatory restitution) be included as
a DPA term?

In the case of economic crime, the “victim” may not be an identifiable individual. 1t may be difficult to determine
how restitution should be calculated, apportioned among and/or paid to victims. Further, broader victim
compensation generally falls within provincial jurisdiction, and may not be applicable in the case of a foreign-based
offence.
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Any antucupatory restitution as part of the terms of:a DPA should lake, mto account other,actrons_and proceedings
before the. courts (to the extent ‘possible, glven d:ffermg jurlSdlCth)nS) Lo ’

If the Government of Canada lmposes a materlal-fme, such as a. pr-nalty reflectmg the proflt earned from the o

Junsdnctnon The calculatlon of the amount of rest»tutxon is generally qunte burdensome and is perhaps best left to
other proceedmgs c e Lo o

Other Comments or Suggestnons

the transntxon mto a DPA r¢=g|me There would r;ot\ bé ar\térference
lmpanrment of;udncual mdependence : :
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Ministre des Services publics.. ¢ "Minister of Public Services
et de I’Approvisionnement and Procurement

% i-' 1 .
Receveur général du Canada Receiver General for Canada

Qttawa, Canada K1A 0S5

oCTI1207

Mr. Neil Bruce
President and Chief Executive Officer
SNC-Lavalin Inc..

- 455 René- Levesque Boolevard West
,Montreal Quebec HZZ 1Z3 ’

Dear Mr. Bruce:
Thank you for your letter of October 13, 2017, and associated submissions

« regarding the Government of Canada'’s consultatlon on'expanding Canada’s
toolkit to address corporate wrongdorng

This engagement lsh | te_rested Canadrans and stakeholders
to.provide input; on: pote nts to the Integrity Regime and on a
possrble Canadian deferred ‘prosecution: agreement regime.

This officials-led consultative process will help. ensure the:Government has
effective mechanisms in place to contlnue addressrng corporate wrongdorng in
an evolvrng marketplace

Therefore 1 have asked Barbara Glover, Assrstant‘,_Deputy‘Mrnrster lntegnty
to organize a meeting with your representatrves to drscuss the responses
provided in your submissions.

Thank you for part|C|pat|ng w1th|n the consultatron process..Should-you have
any questions or concerns, you can contact: Ms. Glover at’ 819 997—1 094 or at
barbara. glover@tpsgc—pwgsc gc CA. i e e

Sincerely,

g

The Honourable Carla Qualtrough, P.C., M.P.
| 12

Canad"'
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c.c..

.‘—2_

The Honourable Scott Brison, P.C., M.P.
President of the Treasury Board

The Honourable Navdeep Singh Bains, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Innovation, Science and Economic Development

The Honourable William Francis Morneau, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Finance

The Honourable Jody Wilson-Raybould, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Justice and Attorney General of Canada

The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Foreign Affairs

The Honourable Jémes G. Carr, P.C., M.P.
Minister of Natural Resources

The Honourable Frangois-Philippe Champagne, P.C., M.P.
Minister of International Trade ‘

Divulgué en vertu de la LAI
Released under the ATIA

000036




